
 

WTRY Broadcast Schedule Regular Meetings, Wednesday, 6:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. Study Meetings, Wednesday, 3:00 p.m. 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 
 MEETING AGENDA 

SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING 
 
 

John J. Tagle, Chair, Donald Edmunds, Vice Chair 
Michael W. Hutson, Edward Kempen, Tom Krent, Philip Sanzica 

Gordon Schepke, Robert Schultz and Thomas Strat 
   
June 25, 2013 7:00 P.M. Council Board Room 
   

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. MINUTES – June 11, 2013 Regular Meeting 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 
 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT 
 
8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Cedar Pines Woods Site 

Condominium, 8 units/lots, East side of Crooks, South of Benjamin (6622 Crooks), 
Section 4, Currently Zoned R-1B (One Family Residential) District 

 
STUDY ITEMS 

 
9. BIG BEAVER KILMER PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (File Number PUD 010) – 

Proposed Revisions to Residential Portion 
 

10. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 245) – Sober Living 
Facilities 

 
11. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 

12. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City 

Clerk by e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting.  An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 

500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3364 
www.troymi.gov 

planning@troymi.gov 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us�


PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Tagle called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:00 p.m. on June 11, 2013 in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Michael W. Hutson 
Edward Kempen 
Tom Krent (exited at 8:00 p.m.) 
Philip Sanzica 
Gordon Schepke 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Ryan Dinius, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Frank Boudon, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-06-043 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Hutson 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2013-06-044 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the May 28, 2013 Special/Study meeting as 
published. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
POSTPONED ITEMS 

 
5. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 401) – 

Proposed Midwest Industrial Metals Inc., 2222 Stephenson Highway, Section 26, 
Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed revisions to the site plan and specifically addressed the Code 
Enforcement report and proposed screening.  Mr. Carlisle finds the proposed screening 
to be sufficient.  He noted that because it is a Special Use application, the Board may 
require additional screening if it determines there is an additional need to protect public 
health, safety and welfare.  Mr. Carlisle recommended that the Board grant approval of 
the Special Use and Preliminary Site Plan application with a condition that the east 
elevation door(s) remain closed except for access. 
 
Robert Stefani, representative of the applicant, and the applicant, Mark Hewines, were 
present.  Mr. Stefani stated the applicant has made a great effort to bring the site into 
compliance.  He confirmed that the back lot would be paved within 21-30 days. 
 
Mr. Savidant confirmed he forwarded to the Board the email message sent by Mr. 
Stefani regarding the lot paving. 
 
Chair Tagle opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Marvin Reinhardt, 1281 Dorre, Troy, addressed concerns with noise, traffic and air quality. 
 
Mike Damman of A. J. Damman Company, 1180 E. Big Beaver, Troy, agreed there have 
been improvements to the site.  He asked if approval could be subject to the completion of 
the asphalt and repair of the fence. 
 
Chair Tagle closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Mr. Savidant said there is no need to condition approval on the asphalt paving because 
it is noted on the site plan and compliance to the site plan is required prior to the 
issuance of any permits. 
 
Members Schultz and Edmunds indicated their preference to require a masonry wall on 
a portion of the south wall. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

3 
 

Resolution # PC-2013-06-045 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed Midwest Industrial Metals Inc., 2222 Stephenson Highway, Section 26, 
currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District, be granted, subject 
to the following conditions: 
 
1. East elevation doors to remain closed except for access purposes. 
 
Yes: Kempen, Krent, Sanzica, Schepke, Strat, Tagle 
No: Edwards, Schultz 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
6. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 404) – 

Proposed United Ventures II LLC, West of John R, North of Maple (1861 Birchwood), 
Section 26, Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the revised plans and reported the City’s Traffic Consultant 
continues to find the site to be compromised in terms of circulation and maneuverability 
of trucks, and cited no specific number of vehicles or parking spaces that would be 
acceptable.  Based on those findings and that of the City’s Traffic Engineer, Mr. Carlisle 
recommended that the Board postpone the application to provide the applicant time to 
resubmit a site plan and other associated plans which reduce the proposed number of 
vehicles to be stored on site. 
 
Further, Mr. Carlisle brought attention to the notation on the site plan of a portable toilet 
located in the northeast corner of the parcel.  He indicated the applicant is open to the 
Board’s recommendation if a portable toilet would be required on site. 
 
There was discussion on: 
• Potential future users. 
• Reduction of parking spaces. 
• Monitoring site for site plan compliance and code violations. 
• Purview of Planning Commission to require a portable toilet. 
 
The petitioner, John Wernis, and project engineer, Nathan Robinson of Horizon 
Engineering, were present.  The gentlemen addressed the ratio of employee parking to 
work vehicles, shuttle transportation of employees to the site, staggering crew work 
times and maneuverability plans. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

4 
 

Chair Tagle opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Tagle closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-06-046 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed United Ventures II LLC, West of John R, North of Maple (1861 Birchwood), 
Section 26, currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District, be granted, 
subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. A maximum of eight (8) work vehicles (truck/trailer combination) and a minimum of 

sixteen (16) parking spaces. 
2. Provide a portable toilet as noted on the site plan, and service and maintenance of 

same. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

7. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 407) – 
Proposed 1-800 Mini Storage, East side of Rochester, South of Wattles (3846 
Rochester), Section 23, Currently Zoned GB (General Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle gave a report on the revised site plan.  He specifically addressed the 
proposed landscaping and angle and massing studies provided by the applicant.  Mr. 
Carlisle said the applicant addressed concerns with respect to the impact on single 
family residential and the compatibility on Rochester Road.  He said the site plan meets 
all the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance.  Mr. Carlisle recommended that the Board 
grant approval of the Preliminary Site Plan and Special Use application. 
 
[Tom Krent exited meeting at 8:00 p.m.] 
 
The petitioner, Ed Hersch, and project architect, Joe Guido, were present. 
 
Chair Tagle opened the floor for public comment. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

5 
 

The following persons spoke in opposition of the application. 
• William Jenuwine, 1274 Tennyson, Troy (circulated photograph representative of 5-

story building height in relation to single family home) 
• John Robertson, 3705 Hawthorne, Troy (questioned distribution of public comment at 

Public Hearing and minutes of Public Hearing meeting) 
• Kimberly Flaig, 1219 Judy, Troy (circulated photographs of existing buildings on 

Rochester, proposed building height in relation to height of existing flag pole) 
• Mark Dziadosz, 3819 Hawthorne, Troy 
• Mark Jones, 3771 Hawthorne, Troy 
• David Gottschack, 1205 Judy Drive, Troy 
• Dave Hummi, 3803 Hawthorne, Troy 
• Bill Touissen, 1289 Judy, Troy 
• Janice Hummi, 3803 Hawthorne, Troy 
• Susan DiMare-Smith, 1340 Burns, Troy 
• Krishna Chellemella, 3787 Hawthorne, Troy 
• Joni DiMare, 1205 Judy, Troy 
• Susan Brown, 1261 Judy, Troy 
 
Concerns expressed related to: 
• Height of building as relates to residential surroundings 
• Effect on property values 
• Outdoor storage 
• Shadowing effect 
• Traffic 
• Landscaping/screening 
• Public notification of Zoning Ordinance to allow 5-story buildings 
• Lighting 
• Existing vacant buildings; potential for vacant building in future 
• Setting a precedent for 5-story buildings 
• Site Plan approval and Code Enforcement 
• Parking on site 
 
Mr. Carlisle stated that outdoor storage is not a part of this application in front of the Board 
this evening and would require a separate Special Use approval.  He said with the 
exception of twelve exterior storage units, all storage units are accessed internally, 
minimizing the impact of traffic and parking on site. 
 
Mr. Savidant assured all public comment is provided to Board members and he would 
specifically address receipt and distribution of any public comment upon request.  Mr. 
Savidant announced that additional signatures to the petition in opposition that was 
submitted at the May 14, 2013 Public Hearing were presented to the Board this evening 
prior to the beginning of the meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

6 
 

Mr. Carlisle confirmed the photometric plan meets all requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance and the plan was display for public view during the meeting. 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed the procedures for Site Plan approval and code enforcement. 
 
Ms. Bluhm clarified that City administration is responsible for code enforcement and the 
Planning Commission and the City Council are separate from City administration. 
 
Chair Tagle closed the floor for public comment. 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Tagle requested a recess at 8:54 p.m.  The meeting reconvened at 9:00 p.m. 

___________ 
 
Chair Tagle and other Board members expressed empathy toward the concerns 
expressed by the residents this evening and at the Public Hearing on May 14.  It was 
declared that the application meets all requirements of the Zoning Ordinance and the 
City would be subject to litigation should the application be denied. 
 
The residents were informed that many hours by the Planning Commission, City Council, 
administration, consultants, developers and residents were put into the writing of the 
Master Plan and Zoning Ordinance, and appropriate legal notification was given to the 
public on the adoption of both documents. 
 
Member Schultz asked if the Board could require the applicant to step down the height 
of the building as a condition to site plan approval. 
 
Ms. Bluhm replied the Board would have to find a special consideration to apply that 
condition to its approval. 
 
When asked by the Board, the applicant replied it would not be economically feasible to 
lower the height of the building from the proposed five stories. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-06-047 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed 1-800 Mini Storage, East side of Rochester, South of Wattles (3846 
Rochester), Section 23, Currently Zoned GB (General Business) District, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Hutson, Krent 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

7 
 

8. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 406) – 
Proposed McDonald’s Restaurant, West side of Dequindre, South of Big Beaver (36895 
Dequindre), Section 25, Currently Zoned NN “B” (Neighborhood Node “B”) 
 
Mr. Carlisle gave a report on the revised site plan.  He said the applicant has addressed 
all concerns expressed by the Board, and it is his recommendation to grant Preliminary 
Site Plan approval and Special Use approval with the condition to resubmit a 
photometric plan that is in compliance with the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
The petitioner and project architect, Frank Martin, was present.  Mr. Martin said he would 
provide a photometric plan that complies with the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Chair Tagle opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Tagle closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-06-048 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed McDonald’s Restaurant improvements, West side of Dequindre, South of Big 
Beaver (36895 Dequindre), Section 25, Currently Zoned NN “B” (Neighborhood Node 
“B”), be granted, subject to the following condition: 
 
1. Resubmit a photometric plan which complies with Article 13 of the Ordinance. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Hutson, Krent 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

SPECIAL USE AND REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
9. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File 

Number SU 408) – Proposed Modern Kitchen/Bath-Tabak Stone, West side of John R, 
South of Big Beaver (2701-2703 John R), Section 26, Currently Zoned IB (Integrated 
Industrial and Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle introduced Ryan Dinius, planning intern for Carlisle/Wortman and 
Associates.  Mr. Carlisle reviewed the reported prepared by Mr. Dinius, specifically 
noting that an 8-foot high concrete wall is proposed when the requirement is 6 feet.  He 
asked the applicant to address this.  Mr. Carlisle recommended that the Board grant 
approval of the Special Use and Preliminary Site Plan with a condition that the applicant 
submit a lighting photometric and fixtures plan at Final Site Plan approval. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

8 
 

Jim Butler of Professional Engineering Associates was present to represent the 
petitioner.  He asked consideration to install a 6-foot concrete wall, noting that the 
applicant is amenable to either height. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-06-049 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed Modern Kitchen/Bath-Tabak Stone outdoor storage, West side of John R, 
South of Big Beaver (2701-2703 John R), Section 26, currently Zoned IB (Integrated 
Industrial and Business) District, be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
, 
1. Submit lighting photometric and fixtures plan at Final Site Plan approval. 
2. Install a six (6’) foot concrete wall. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Hutson, Krent 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
There were general Planning Commission comments. 
 

 
 
The Regular meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:32 p.m. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

9 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
John J. Tagle, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2013 PC Minutes\Draft\2013 06 11 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



  PC 2013.06.25 
  Agenda Item # 8 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE: June 20, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Cedar Pines Woods Site 

 Condominium, 8 units/lots, East side of Crooks, South of Benjamin (6622 Crooks), 
 Section 4, Currently Zoned R-1B (One Family Residential) District 

 
The petitioner Trowbridge Companies submitted the above referenced Preliminary Site Plan 
Approval application for a 8-unit site condominium.  The property is currently zoned R-1B (One 
Family Residential) District.  The Planning Commission is responsible for granting Preliminary 
Site Plan Approval for site condominium applications.  
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the project.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.   City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and recommends approval of the project, as 
noted.   
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File/Cedar Pines Woods Site Condominium 
 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Cedar Pines Woods Site Condo  Sec 4\PC Memo 06 25 2013.docx 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Cedar Pines Woods Site Condominium, 
8 units/lots, East side of Crooks, South of Benjamin (6622 Crooks), Section 4, Currently 
Zoned R-1B (One Family Residential) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-06- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Condominium Approval, pursuant to Article 8 and 
Section 10.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for Cedar Pines Woods Site 
Condominium, 8 units/lots, East side of Crooks, South of Benjamin (6622 Crooks), 
Section 4, Currently Zoned R-1B (One Family Residential) District, be granted, subject 
to the following: 
____________________________________________________________) or  
 
(denied, for the following reasons: _________________________________) or 
 
(postponed, for the following reasons:_________________________________) 
 
 
Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Cedar Pines Woods Site Condo  Sec 4\Proposed Resolution 2013 06 25.doc 



Cedar Pines Woods Site Condo

1: 2,523

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2100420 420Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

4/30/2013

Legend:



Cedar Pines Woods Site Condo

1: 2,523

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2100420 420Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

4/30/2013

Legend:
Form Based Zoning (Current)

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MR) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MF) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales



 
 
 Date: June 17, 2013  
 
 

Preliminary Site Condominium Review 

For 
City of Troy, Michigan 

 
 

 
Applicant: Bruce Michael   
 
Project Name: Cedar Pines 
 
Plan Date: June 4, 2013 
 
Location: East side of Crooks Road south of South Boulevard (to be accessed 

from west side of Merrick Drive).  
 
Zoning: R1-B, One-family Residential District 
 
Action Requested: Preliminary Site Condominium Approval 
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted. 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 

 
We are in receipt of a site condominium application which includes a site plan, landscape plan, 
topographic survey, tree preservation plan, and application forms.  The 4.36 acre site includes one single 
family house.   
 
The applicant is requesting approval of an eight (8) unit single family detached site condominium 
project.  Seven (7) of the lots will be accessed of a newly created single accessed Kimberly Court cul-de-
sac.  Kimberly Court will be public.  The existing house, which makes up lot 8, will maintain its access off 
Crooks Road.   
 
 
 



Cedar Pines 
June 17, 2013 

2 

 
Location of Subject Property: 
East side of Crooks Road, south of South Boulevard 
 

Location and Aerial Image of Subject Site 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
The parcel is 4.36 net acres in area. 
 
Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
Eight (8) detached, single family homes.     
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The subject property currently has one (1) single family home which will be retained as Lot 8. 
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is currently zoned R-1B, One-family Residential District.  
 
 
 
 
 

Site 



Cedar Pines 
June 17, 2013 

3 

Surrounding Property Details: 
 

Direction Zoning Use 
North  R-1B, One-family Residential District. Single-family homes 
South R-1B, One-family Residential District. Single-family homes 
East R-1B, One-family Residential District Single-family homes 
West R-1B, One-family Residential District. Single-family homes 

 

SITE ARRANGEMENT 
 
The proposed site condominium consists of 8-units.  Lot 8, which is created to maintain the existing 
house on site, is approximately twice as large as the other seven (7) lots.  The other seven (7) lots range 
in size between 13,500 square feet and 18,500 square feet.   
 
Lots 1-7 are accessed off a single loaded cul-de-sac.  The right-of-way to the created cul-de sac is five (5) 
feet from the rear property line of four (4) houses that front on Benjamin Drive.  The edge of road 
pavement is approximately 21-feet from the rear property line of four (4) houses that front on Benjamin 
Drive.   The applicant proposes to plant the 5-foot and 16-foot (21-feet total) buffer with twenty-seven 
evergreen trees.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Section 1.03 B. states that the purpose of the Ordinance is to “protect the character and stability of 
residential neighborhoods”. Furthermore, Section C states as a purpose the need to “regulate the 
intensity and form of land development to ensure compatibility among land uses and, where applicable, 
provide transition between land uses to reduce potential negative impacts.” The proposed site 
arrangment and location of the road in relation to the existing lots on Benjamin Drive creates numerous 
issues for Planning Commission consideration: 

5-feet 
16-feet 
 
24-feet 

46-feet 
 

50-feet 
 

50-feet 
 

48-feet 
 

Buffering Detail 
 



Cedar Pines 
June 17, 2013 

4 

 
 
 
 
Landscape Buffer in ROW 
 
The 5-foot wide landscape buffer along the Kimberly Court ROW and the northern property line is not 
wide enough to provide for significant screening.   As a result, the applicant is proposing to plant within 
the City right-of-way in order to provide a landscape buffer for the adjacent Benjamin Road properties.  
Evergreen planting with the City right-of-way is not permitted.   Due to the road location we understand 
the need to buffer; however the use of the City ROW as a buffer is not permissible.  The buffer must be 
located on private property or within an easement.   If the applicant were to relocate the road, the 
necessity for such significant buffering to adjacent properties would be negated.   
 
Negative Impacts upon Adjacent Neighbors 
 
The location of the road will have negative impacts upon the adjacent Benjamin Drive lots.  Potential 
impacts upon include noise, emissions, privacy, and lights.  The applicant has tried to address these 
negative impacts with screening. however issues with the buffer have been noted.    
 
Placing a road adjacently behind existing homes is detrimental to the protection of existing residential 
properties.    There was an expectation for the Benjamin Drive owners when they purchased their home 
in regards to the potential development of adjacent vacant lots.  Though they may have considered the 
future development of homes and back yards adjacent to theirs, they would not have anticipated nor 
contemplated a public road.  The property owners on Benjamin Drive unreasonably bear the impacts of 
the road for the seven (7) lots of the Cedar Pines Site Condo.  
 
Lot 7 Maintenance Responsibility 
 
The 5-foot strip between the right-of-way and the northern property line is part of Lot 7.  The future 
owner of Lot 7 is responsible to maintain this 5-foot strip as well as the 16-foot wide area planted with 
the buffer trees.  This area is approximately 550 feet x 21 feet = 11,500 sq/ft.  
 
Lot 6 is Unbuildable.   
 
The setbacks for Lot 6 were incorrectly determined.   The applicant shows a side yard along the property 
line, when this is a rear setback.  Based on current configuration, Lot 6 is unbuildable.  The applicant will 
either need to remove Lot 6 or reconfigure the site plan.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  Consider site arrangement alternatives to address incompatibility with and 
negative impact upon adjacent properties.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Cedar Pines 
June 17, 2013 

5 

 
 
 
 
SITE ARRANGEMENT ALTERNATIVES  
 
The applicant has not shown any site arrangement alternatives that reduce impacts upon adjacent 
neighbors.   Options for the applicant to consider are either the open space preservation option as set 
forth in section 10.03, or the cluster development option as set forth in section 10.04.  The basic 
premise of either option is design flexibility for the preservation of open space.   For this development 
the protected open space may be used as a buffer from adjacent properties.   
 
Open Space Preservation Option 
 
The Open Space Preservation Option is permitted for site condominium development for R1A and B 
zoned properties.  This development option is intended to both preserve open space but also allow 
development flexibility and reduced development costs for difficult sites such as this.  The objectives of 
the Open Space Preservation site development option align with the design flexibility needed to 
properly develop a difficult site such as this: 

1. Provide a more desirable living environment by preserving the natural character of the 
property and open space for enjoyment by residents of the Open Space Preservation 
development. 

2. Encourage developers to use a more creative approach in the development of residential 
areas. 

3. Encourage a more efficient, aesthetic and desirable use of the land while recognizing a 
reduction in development costs and by allowing the developer to bypass natural obstacles. 

4. Encourage the provision of open space so benefits may accrue directly to residents of the Open 
Space Preservation development and to further encourage the development of recreational 
facilities. 

5. Ensure an Open Space Preservation development shall result in a recognizable and substantial 
benefit to residents of the property and to the overall quality of life in the City. 

 
The basic perimeters of this development option are:  

• Density is determined through underlying parallel plan. 
• 20% open space protection.  The area preserved as open space shall remain in a perpetually 

undeveloped state. 
• Setback requirements at the perimeter of the development shall be equal to the existing 

underlying zoning. For this development it is 45-feet 
• 25’ front yard setback.  If private road, the setback is from back of curb and the sidewalk may be 

included in setback. 
 

Cluster Option 
 
The Cluster Option is offered as an alternative to traditional residential development. The One-
Family Cluster Option is intended to:  

1. Encourage the use of property in accordance with its natural character. 
2. Assure the permanent preservation of open space and other natural features. 



Cedar Pines 
June 17, 2013 

6 

3. Provide recreational facilities and/or open space within a reasonable distance of all 
residents of the One-Family Cluster development. 

4. Allow innovation and greater flexibility in the design of residential developments. 
5. Facilitate the construction and maintenance of streets, utilities and public services in a more 

economical and efficient manner. 
6. Ensure compatibility of design and use between neighboring property. 
7. Encourage a less sprawling form of development, thus preserving open space as 

undeveloped land. 
 
The basic parameters of this development option are:  

• Density is determined through underlying parallel plan. 
• 30% open space protection.   
• Density bonus option if the applicant were to preserve 50% open space.   
• Setback requirements at the perimeter of the development shall be equal to the existing 

underlying zoning. For this development it is 45-feet 
• 20’ front yard setback.  If private road, the setback is from back of curb and the sidewalk may be 

included in setback. 
 
For either the open space preservation or cluster development option, the applicant should consider 
developing this site with a 40-foot wide private road easement rather than a 60-foot public road right-
or-way.  Reducing the area of the road would allow the applicant to reconfigure the road location to 
provide additional buffer on both the north and southern property line.    
 
Reduce Number of Lots 
 
The applicant may need to reduce the number of lots to three or four.  Two lots can front onto Merrick 
Drive and the existing house may remain as one lot or be demolished and split into two lots.  This would 
eliminate the need to build a road.    
 
Items to be Addressed:  1). Consider site arrangement alternatives; and 2). Consider development via 
private road easement.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Cedar Pines 
June 17, 2013 

7 

 
 
 
AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
Required and Provided Dimensions: 
Table 4.06.C establishes the requirements for the R-1B District. The requirements and the proposed 
dimensions are as follows: 
 

*The lot size average option has been applied. 
 
Items to be addressed: 1). Reconfigure lot six building or reconfigure site plan; and 2). Identify maximum 

lot coverage 
 
NATURAL RESOURCES 

  
Topography – A topographic map is provided. The site slopes upward slightly towards the east. A small 
basin is located on the southern portion of the site near the existing accessory structure.  
 
Woodlands – The topographic plan and aerial images indicate heavily wooded areas on the central and 
western portions of the site. The applicant intends to create a tree protection area adjacent to the 
southern edge of the site. Several trees are slated for removal to accommodate the development. The 

  Required: Provided: Compliance: 

Front 40 foot setback 40 foot setback Complies 

Rear 45 foot setback Lot Six has 15 foot setback Lot Six does not 
comply. 

Side 10 foot minimum for least 
side setback, 25 foot 
minimum combined setback 

10 foot, 25 foot combined  Complies 

Lot Size per Unit* 15,000 square feet (for 
projects with sewer) 

13,574 square feet is the 
smallest as indicated by 
applicant; however the 
setbacks for Lot Six were 
incorrectly determined.   
Based on revised setbacks, 
Lot Six does not comply.   
 
 

Does not Comply 

Maximum Height 30 feet, 2.5 story Not identified Not enough 
information 

Lot Width* 100 feet 94 feet smallest,                             
122 feet average 

Complies 

Maximum Lot Area 
Covered by Buildings 

30 percent Not identified Not enough 
information 

Minimum Floor Area 
per Unit 

1,400 square feet + 3,000 square feet Complies 



Cedar Pines 
June 17, 2013 

8 

applicant has indicated the clearing of ten trees in the northwest corner, however, of which does not 
appear to be necessary for development of the site. The applicant should indicate why these trees are to 
be removed or attempt to preserve them.  

Wetlands - According to the National Wetlands Inventory map for the area, the subject site does not 
contain wetlands. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  Provide justification for tree removal near northwest corner of site.  
 
SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 

 
Vehicular 
 
Access to the site will be from Merrick Drive with a 600 foot long cul-de-sac. We have indicated our 
concern regarding the compatibility of the proposed road.   
 
Pedestrian  
 
A five (5) foot sidewalk will be provided on the southern side of Kimberly Court.  Based on the current 
site arrangement the provision of a sidewalk along the north side of the Kimberly Court is not advisable 
due to landscape screening.  The applicant has shown a sidewalk along Merrick Drive.   

 
Items to be Addressed:  None 
 
STORMWATER 

 
The applicant proposes to expand the existing retention pond in the Cedar Pines Estates (northern side 
of proposed Kimberly Court.  The detention pond expansion is close to the southern property line.   The 
City Engineer notes that additional details need to be provided to determine if detention pond 
expansion is possible.  If detention pond expansion is not possible, stormwater will be maintained on 
site and thus site arrangement will be affected.    
 
Items to be Addressed:  Work with the Engineering Department to determine if detention pond 
expansion is possible. 
 
LANDSCAPING 

 
Site condominium and subdivision landscaping are regulated by Section 13.02.F.2. 
 
 Required Provided Compliance 
Crooks Road Frontage One large evergreen tree for 

every 50 lineal feet.  210 
Feet = 4 trees 

9 trees (5 new, 4 
existing) 

Complies 

Merrick Drive Frontage One tree for every 50 lineal 
feet.  210 Feet = 4 trees 

8 trees (1 new, 7 
existing) 

Complies 

Kimberly Court Frontage  One tree for every 50 lineal 
feet. 1250 feet  = 25 trees 

45 new trees Includes Evergreen 
Tree Screening.   



Cedar Pines 
June 17, 2013 

9 

 
Kimberly Court frontage includes proposed evergreen tree screening.  As noted above, the proposed 
landscaping must be modified.  The applicant will be required to amend landscape plan accordingly.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  Amend landscape plan based on site plan changes.   
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
The proposed site condominium project is neither consistent nor compatible with other developments 
in the community, and more importantly adjacent properties.  The applicant has provided a site plan 
layout that creates negative impacts upon adjacent properties.  The proposed development does not 
meet the general purpose of the Zoning Ordinance or the intent of the Site Condominium section of the 
ordinance.  
 
We recommend that the applicant consider site arrangement alternatives that reduce impacts upon 
adjacent neighbors.    
 
 

 
cc:  
 

























  PC 2013.06.25 
  Agenda Item # 9 
 

 
 
DATE: June 20, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: BIG BEAVER KILMER PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (File Number PUD 010) - 

 Proposed Revisions to Residential Portion 
 
Big Beaver Kilmer Planned Unit Development (PUD) received Concept Development Plan 
(CDP) approval on December 15, 2008 and Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) approval on 
June 15, 2009. 
  
The PUD is a mixed-use project with a commercial component along Big Beaver that consists of 
a 9,607 S.F. retail building, a 7,202 S.F. retail building, and a 1,800 S.F. Tim Horton’s restaurant 
with a drive thru.  The residential component to the north of the commercial component includes 
fourteen (14) residential units.  Construction was recently completed on the commercial portion 
of this project.  Underground utilities have been constructed for the residential component but 
construction of the residential units has not started. 
 
The applicant Robertson Brothers seeks to construct the residential component of the PUD.  
The proposed layout was modified slightly but is generally consistent with the approved layout.  
They seek to add three (3) additional units, bringing the total number of units in the residential 
component to seventeen (17).  The design of the approved PUD was somewhat urban in nature, 
consistent with the commercial frontage.  The applicant seeks to modify the design of the 
residential units and seeks approval/direction from the Planning Commission on this matter.   
 
The applicant will need to revise the CDP and PDP to increase residential density for the PUD, 
and seeks input from the Planning Commission on this matter. 
 
Please be prepared to discuss this item at the June 25, 2013 Special/Study meeting.    
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Miscellaneous information provided by applicant 

 
 
G:\PUD's\PUD 010 Big Beaver Kilmer\Application Revisions\PC Memo 06 25 13.doc.docx 



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

463

1:

Feet4630 232



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

376

1:

Feet3760 188





















































  PC 2013.06.25 
  Agenda Item # 11 
 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE: June 20, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 245) – 

Sober Living Facilities 
 
 
The Planning Commission discussed this item at a number of public meetings.  The 
Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on March 26, 2013 and 
recommended approval of the public hearing draft.  City Council held a public hearing on 
this item on April 15, 2013 and postponed the item to provide City Council an opportunity 
to ask questions of staff.  The item was considered again at the May 13, 2013 City Council 
meeting, where it was sent back to Planning Commission for further study. 
 
The intent of the language is to regulate sober living facilities in the City of Troy.  A 
definition for sober living facilities was created.  Sober living facilities with 6 or fewer 
residents are treated as single family residential uses, similar to adult foster care small 
group homes.  Sober living facilities with 7 or more residents are permitted subject to 
special use approval in the R-1A through R-1E, RT, MR, UR, IB and OM districts.   
 
The attached Public Hearing Draft was prepared based on input from City Council and is 
consistent with the proposed language in the memo prepared by Carlisle\Wortman 
Associates, Inc., dated May 23, 2013.  The Planning Commission reached a consensus 
on this language at the May 28, 2013 Special/Study meeting. 
 
Please be prepared to discuss this item at the June 25, 2013 Special/Study meeting. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Planning Commission Public Hearing Draft 
2. Memo prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., dated May 23, 2013 

 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 245 Recovery Centers\PC Memo 06 25 2013.doc 



CITY OF TROY 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
 CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

 OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39, Zoning 
Ordinance, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended as follows 
 
Add the following definition to Section 2.02 DEFINITIONS:  
 
SOBER LIVING FACILITY:  A temporary residential living arrangement for seven (7) or 
more adult persons leaving an institutional setting recovering from drug or alcohol 
addiction and in need of a supportive living arrangement in order to readjust to living 
outside the institution. These are persons who are receiving therapy and counseling 
from licensed or certified professional staff and trained non-professional or 
paraprofessional support staff who are present when residents are present, to help 
them recuperate from the effects of drug or alcohol addiction.  Sober living facility may 
provide limited supportive services to residents only, including: mental health services; 
clinical rehabilitation services; social services; financial management services; legal 
services; and other similar supportive services.  Residency is limited to a specific 
number of weeks or months, typically 24 months or less.  This definition does not 
constitute halfway houses for those released from prison or a homeless situation. 
 
 
Add the following to Section 4.21 SCHEDULE OF USE REGULATIONS: 
 
Institutional 

 
 
 
 
 

 R1A-
R1E 

RT MF UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

Sober 
Living 
Facilities 

NP S S S NP NP NP NP S NP S NP NP NP NP 



Add Section 6.33 to read as follows: 
 
SECTION 6.33 SOBER LIVING FACILITIES:  
 

A. All residents shall be eighteen (18) years of age or older. 
 

B. Frontage on either a major or minor arterial street shall be required. 
 

C. Appropriate licenses with the State of Michigan shall be maintained. 
 

D. The subject parcel shall meet the minimum lot area requirements for the zoning 
district in which it is located provided there is a minimum site area of four-
thousand (4,000) square feet per resident, excluding employees, and/or 
caregivers.   

 
E. The total number of residents shall not exceed 20.  

 
F. Facilities may include ancillary facilities such as multi-purpose recreational rooms 

and meeting rooms.  
 
 
Add the following to Table 13.06-A to read as follows: 
 
Institutional and Places of Gathering 
Sober Living Facilities 1 space for each 1 per bed and 1 space per 

employee and/or caregiver at largest shift  
 
 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
 
 
 
 



Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This amendment to the Zoning Ordinance shall take effect seven (7) days after 
publication, which shall be published within 15 days of adoption, as required the 
Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (Act 110 of 2006). 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
_______ day of _____________, 2013. 
 
 
  ______________________________ 
  Dane Slater, Mayor 
 
 
  ______________________________ 
 Aileen Bittner, City Clerk  
 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 245 Recovery Centers\ZOTA 245 PC Public Hearing Draft Revised 06 25 2013.doc 



 

  

605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104 
 
(734) 662-2200 
(734) 662-1935 Fax 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Troy Planning Commission  
 Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
FROM: Ben Carlisle 
 
DATE: May 23, 2013 
 
RE: Sober Living Text Amendment 
 
 
 
On April 15, 2013, the City Council held a public hearing for the Sober Living Text Amendment.    At that 
meeting, they considered the Planning Commission recommended zoning regulatory language, as well 
as received public testimony.  After a presentation by staff, public testimony, and deliberation, the 
matter was continued to the May 13, 2013 meeting to allow staff time to research and address specific 
questions from Council.  
 
The questions from Council were mostly related to the demonstration of “need” and potential impact 
on single-family residential properties and neighborhoods.  Attached is a memo prepared by staff 
addressing Council’s questions. 
 
On May 13th, the City Council considered a presentation from staff specifically addressing the Council’s 
questions.  After deliberation, the City Council remanded the matter to the Planning Commission for 
further study.  
 
Planning Commission Consideration 
 
Addressing the request of the Council, the Planning Commission is asked to further study the matter to 
ensure protection of single-family residential neighborhoods.  Listed below are proposed options to be 
considered by the Planning Commission:  
 
1.  Permit Use only in Multiple-Family Residential, Integrated Business, and Office-Mixed Use Districts    
  

 

 R1A-
R1E 

RT MF UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

Sober Living 
Facility  

S, NP 
 

S S S NP NP NP NP S NP S NP NP NP NP 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
2  P a g e  

 
2.  Limit the Maximum Permitted Residents Per Facility to 20. 
 
A 20 resident limit would be consistent with the resident limit for Foster Care Large Group Home.  
Limiting the overall number of residents reduces the potential for external impacts (parking, noise, light, 
etc) upon adjacent properties.   
 
3.  Increase minimum lot area per resident from 2,500 sq/ft to 4,000 sq/ft. 
 
A 4,000 sq/ft minimum lot area per resident requirement would be consistent with the minimum sq/ft 
requirement for Adult Care Foster Facilities.  Because the Ordinance only regulates facilities of seven (7) 
residents or more, the minimum lot area for a Sober Living Facility is 28,000 sq/ft.  A 28,000 sq/ft 
minimum lot area would reduce the potential for external impacts upon adjacent properties by ensuring 
adequate area for parking, open space, and setbacks.   
 
I look forward to discussing this further.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
 

 
 
Attachment:      Council Question Memo 
  Sober Living Draft Text Amendment (dated 4-15-13)  
 
 


	1. ROLL CALL
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	3. MINUTES
	June 11, 2013 Regular Meeting

	4. PUBLIC COMMENT
	5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT
	6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT
	7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT
	8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2)
	Planning Consultant Report
	Site Plan (pgs 24-34)

	9. BIG BEAVER KILMER PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (File Number PUD 010)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Maps (2)
	Information provided by Applicant (pgs 38-62) 

	10. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 245)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Public Hearing Draft
	Planning Consultant Report 

	11. PUBLIC COMMENT
	12. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT



